
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

Committee: Personnel Committee 
 

Date:  Wednesday 11 September 2013 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Lynn Pratt (Chairman) Councillor Melanie Magee (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Ann Bonner 
Councillor Norman Bolster Councillor G A Reynolds 
Councillor Alaric Rose Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
Councillor Rose Stratford Councillor Lynda Thirzie Smart 
Councillor Barry Wood Labour vacancy 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members      
 
 

2. Declarations of Interest      
 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which 
they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting      
 
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the 
meeting. 
 
 

4. Urgent Business      
 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 8)    
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
6 June 2013 and the Special Personnel Committee held on 23 July 2013. 
 
 

6. Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy  (Pages 9 - 38)    
 
Report of the Head of Transformation. 
 
Summary 
 
To consider the Council policy in relation to the revised Joint Staff Disciplinary and 
Dismissal Policy, specifically in relation to the Joint Management Team. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Personnel Committee is recommended: 
 
(1) To consider the views and recommendations of Council and Employee Joint 

Committee.  
 
(2)   To approve the revised Joint Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy and 

delegate authority to the Head of Law and Governance to make any 
consequential changes to the Constitution. 

 
 

7. Employment Statistic - Quarter 1 2013/2014  (Pages 39 - 46)    
 
Report of Head of Transformation 
 
Summary 
 
The purpose of this report is to detail employment statistics, by Directorate, for 
information and monitoring purposes and to compare the Cherwell District Council 
position against the wider employment market. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Personnel Committee is recommended to: 
 
(1) Note the contents of this report. 
 
 
 

 

Councillors are requested to collect any post from their pigeon 
hole in the Members Room at the end of the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Information about this Meeting 
 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to 
democracy@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk or 01295 221601 prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item.  
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest 
available fire exit.  Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 

Access to Meetings 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
Mobile Phones 
 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
 
Please contact Louise Aston, Democratic and Elections 
louise.aston@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk, 01295 221601  
 
 
Sue Smith 
Chief Executive 
 
Published on Tuesday 3 September 2013 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Cherwell District Council 
 

Personnel Committee 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Personnel Committee held at Bodicote House, 
Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 5 June 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor Lynn Pratt (Chairman)  

Councillor Melanie Magee (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillor Ann Bonner 
Councillor G A Reynolds 
Councillor Alaric Rose 
Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
Councillor Rose Stratford 
Councillor Lynda Thirzie Smart 
Councillor Barry Wood 
 

 
Substitute 
Members: 

Councillor Nigel Randall (In place of Councillor Norman 
Bolster) 
Councillor Mike Kerford-Byrnes (In place of Councillor Ken 
Atack) 
 

 
Also 
Present: 

 Lesley Shore, HR Project Co-ordinator, West Midlands HR 
Services (for agenda item 11) 
 

 
Apologies 
for 
absence: 

Councillor Ken Atack 
Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor Patrick Cartledge 
 

 
Officers: Jo Pitman, Head of Transformation 

Stephanie Rew, HR Manager (agenda items 1-8 only) 
Gina Thomas, HR Manager (agenda items 1-8 only) 
Louise Aston, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections 
 

 
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

4 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting  
 
There were no petitions or requests to address the meeting. 
 

5 Urgent Business  
 
There was no urgent business. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Personnel Committee - 5 June 2013 

  

 
 

6 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 6 February 2013 and 15 May 2013 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

7 Joint Homeworking Policy  
 
The HR Manager (South Northamptonshire Council) presented a report on the 
revised Joint Home-Working policy. 
 
The policy would cover all staff at Cherwell District Council and South 
Northamptonshire Council and provided guidance for working at home and 
mobile working. The revised policy provided clearer definitions on the 
management of home working and the way in which an employee could apply 
for home working and the definition of the types of home working. It was 
anticipated that this policy would help develop a more flexible workforce. 
 
Four teams representing a cross section of council services would be piloting 
the policy between September and December 2013.  
 
The Committee agreed that carrying out a pilot scheme would to useful to 
establish the aspects which do and do not work well. The Committee 
commented that the policy would be of benefit to the organisation. 
 
In response to the Committee’s concerns regarding potential issues of trust, 
the HR Manager explained that policies would be in place to reverse 
homeworking if it was misused by an individual. 
 
It was noted that the Council and Employee Joint Committee had supported 
the revised policy. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the revised Joint Home-Working policy be approved. 
 

8 Employment Statistics Quarter 4 - 2012-2013  
 
The HR Manager presented a report which detailed the employment statistics, 
by Directorate, for information and monitoring purposes.  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the report be noted. 

 
 

9 Exclusion of the Public and Press  
 
Resolved 
 

Page 2



Personnel Committee - 5 June 2013 

  

That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business, on the grounds that it could involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 4 of Schedule 12A of that Act. 
 
 

10 Proposed Business Case for Implementing Phase One of a Shared 
Service for Cherwell District and South Northamptonshire Council's 
Environmental Services  
 
The Head of Environmental Services submitted a report which sought support 
for the staffing aspects of the business case to implement Phase 1 of the 
Environmental Services team across Cherwell District Council (CDC) and 
South Northamptonshire Council (SNC). 
 
In introducing the report the Head of Environmental Services outlined the 
current service and how it operated at both CDC and SNC for waste and 
recycling, street cleansing, vehicle and fleet management across both sites. 
 
The committee was advised that staff consultation on Phase 1 of the business 
case had concluded on 29 May 2012.  This process had included numerous 
meetings with affected staff and unions at both councils. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the consultation comments and responses tabled at the meeting 

be noted. 
 

(2) That the staffing aspects of the Business Case to implement Phase 1 
of the Environmental Services Business Case between South 
Northamptonshire Council and Cherwell District Council be endorsed, 
and authority delegated to the Head of Environmental Services to take 
all necessary steps to implement the structure in compliance with the 
Organisational Change policy and in consultation with the HR Manager 
for both Councils. 

 
11 Proposal for a Shared Human Resources Service with South 

Northamptonshire Council and a collaborative approach to the Delivery 
of HR Services with Stratford on Avon District Council  
 
The Head of Transformation submitted a report which outlined the proposals 
for a shared HR service between Cherwell District Council (CDC) and South 
Northamptonshire Council (SNC), and a collaborative approach to the delivery 
of HR services with Stratford on Avon District Council (SDC) and sought 
support for the proposed new structure. 
 
In introducing the report the Head of Transformation outlined the current HR 
service and how it operated at CDC, SNC and SDC, along with the 
anticipated benefits of a shared service, which would come in the form of 
improvements to the service, greater consistency in support and advice to 
managers across both councils, greater service resilience, employee 
development (for those within the proposed new service) and £97k savings for 
CDC. 

Page 3



Personnel Committee - 5 June 2013 

  

 
The Committee commended the Head of Transformation on the consultation 
process, the report and the structure. 
 
Resolved 
 
(3) That the consultation comments in the consultation log be noted. 

 
(4) That the Human Resource elements of the proposed business case to 

share an HR service between CDC and SNC be agreed and the non-
HR elements recommended to the Executive for approval on 1 July 
2013. 

 
(5) That the proposal to work in collaboration with SDC in relation to the 

delivery of HR services be supported and that the Executive be 
recommended to approve the collaborative approach. 

 
(6) That it be noted that the proposals must be supported by both CDC 

and SNC Councils in order to be implemented. 
 
 

12 Resourcing - Major Development Projects  
 
The Director of Resources submitted a report on the resourcing of Major 
Development Projects. 
 
It was proposed that a permanent new Director post for Cherwell District 
Council be established to deal with the major regeneration projects that were 
taking place across the District with the initial emphasis being placed upon 
Bicester Regeneration. 
 
In considering the report, the Committee recognised the importance of 
regeneration across the whole district and that this post would support this 
work. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That a permanent new Director post with specific responsibility for 

regeneration activity across the District of Cherwell and an initial focus 
on regeneration in Bicester be established and the Director of 
Resources be requested to carry out all actions to enact this decision. 

 
(2) That the Director or Resources be requested to run an internal 

appointment process in the first instance. 
 

(3) That the Director of Resources be requested to commence recruitment 
to the role as quickly as practicable. 

 
(4) That the Committee delegate authority to the Chief Executive to finalise 

all other arrangements in relation to the establishment, terms and 
conditions and recruitment of this post. 

 
 

Page 4



Personnel Committee - 5 June 2013 

  

The meeting ended at 8.04 pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Cherwell District Council 
 

Personnel Committee 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Personnel Committee held at Bodicote House, 
Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 23 July 2013 at 5.00 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor Lynn Pratt (Chairman)  

Councillor Melanie Magee (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillor Ken Atack 
Councillor Ann Bonner 
Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor G A Reynolds 
Councillor Lawrie Stratford 
Councillor Rose Stratford 
Councillor Barry Wood 
 

 
Substitute 
Members: 

Councillor Mike Kerford-Byrnes (In place of Councillor Lynda 
Thirzie Smart) 
 

 
Apologies 
for 
absence: 

Councillor Patrick Cartledge 
Councillor Alaric Rose 
Councillor Lynda Thirzie Smart 
 

 
Officers: Sue Smith, Chief Executive 

Lesley Shore, HR Project Co-Ordinator, West Midlands 
Employers 
 

 
 
 

13 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 
 

14 Exclusion of the Public and Press  
 
Resolved 
 
That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2, of Schedule 12A of that 
Act.” 
 
 
 

Page 7



Personnel Committee - 23 July 2013 

  

15 Recruitment Process for Director (Bicester Regeneration Projects)  
 
The committee considered the application that had been received for the post 
of Director (Bicester). The committee saw the applicant and asked a number 
of questions. 
 
Following the interview the committee evaluated the application and 
considered the supporting information from the assessment centre. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That Cherwell District Council appoint Karen Curtin be appointed 

Director (Bicester). 
 
 

The meeting ended at 6.30 pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 

Page 8



 

   

Personnel Committee 
 

Revised Joint Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy 
 

11 September 2013 
 

Report of the Head of Transformation 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To consider the Council policy in relation to the revised Joint Staff Disciplinary and 
Dismissal Policy, specifically in relation to the Joint Management Team. 
  

 
This report is public 

 

 
Recommendations 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 
 
(1)  Consider the views and recommendations of Council and Employee Joint 

Committee 
 
(2)  Approve the revised Joint Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy and delegate      

authority to the Head of Law and Governance to make any consequential 
changes to the Constitution. 

Executive Summary 

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The revised policy is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
1.2 The Joint Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy is used to provide 

guidance for managers and employees on how issues of misconduct or 
negligence, rather than lack of capability, will be dealt with. Capability is 
dealt with through alternative policies at both Councils. The policy applies 
to all staff at both Councils with the exception of the Statutory Officers 
roles of Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive), Monitoring Officer (Head 
of Law and Governance) and Section 151 Officer (Director of Resources), 
where currently a separate statutory process applies although the 
Government has announced its intention to remove this at a future date.  
 

2. Proposals For Change 
 

2.1 The original version of this joint policy was approved in March 2012. 
However since then it has been realised that it requires amendment to 
reflect accurately its application to members of JMT who are employed by 
both Councils 
 

2.2 Also at the time of approval of the original joint policy, the members of JMT 
were all employed to undertake work for both Councils. Since then a new 
Cherwell only post of Director for Bicester has been created. The current 
policy does not at present cover for this eventuality and therefore has been 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



 

   

updated to cater for it and any other single Council JMT posts that might 
be created in the future. 
 

2.3 Joint Personnel Committee is currently stated as the disciplinary body and 
investigating body for misconduct and negligence for all members of JMT 
(except the statutory roles which are covered by a different policy), and the 
Joint Appeals Committee would deal with any appeals arising from action 
taken against JMT members.  
 

2.4 The updated policy confirms that Personnel Committee (CDC) and 
Appointments and Personnel Committee (SNC) should be the disciplinary 
and investigating body for any JMT posts employed solely by a single 
Council. The same will apply for appeals where the Joint Appeals 
Committee, Appeals Committee (SNC) or Appeals Committee (CDC) will 
be selected based on the nature of the employment of the member of 
JMT. 
 

2.5 The proposed policy also delegates responsibility to the Chief Executive to 
suspend a Director or Head of Service (except for those in statutory roles) 
quickly, in agreement with the relevant chairman from the appropriate 
personnel committee, should this ever be required. If a speedy suspension 
is not required this will remain the responsibility of the appropriate 
personnel committee. 
 

2.6 Delegated Authority to Dismiss – Non JMT Appointments 
Amendments are also proposed to allow Heads of Service greater 
delegations in relation to disciplinary action for all non JMT staff. This 
includes responsibility for determining whether disciplinary action is taken 
following review of the investigation report, dealing with fraud issues, and 
being able to make a decision to dismiss an employee. At present these 
responsibilities have to be completed either by the Head of Transformation 
or another delegated member of HR. Going forward this will mean that 
decisions around disciplinary action will no longer have to involve the Head 
of Transformation, and all Heads of Service will be given the same 
delegated responsibilities, which will provide greater resilience when 
dealing with these matters. It will also mean one Head of Service can deal 
with the disciplinary action from start to finish of the process, which should 
make for a more consistent and speedier process for all involved. 
 

2.7 Should these amendments all be agreed, the Terms of Reference for all 
three personnel committees and appeals committees will be reviewed to 
ensure they comply with this policy, as well as reviewing the delegated 
powers to JMT, as detailed in the respective Constitutions of the two 
Councils.  
 

3. Conclusion 
 

3.1 The current Joint Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy needs to offer 
clarity around the process that will be utilised for all staff, and in this 
instance members of JMT (excluding statutory officers), should disciplinary 
action and possibly the decision to dismiss an employee be taken. The 
same can be said for dealing with appeals. Without this clear process, and 
defined decision making responsibilities, the Councils are at increased risk 
of challenge and success in the form of employee complaints and possibly 
employment tribunal claims when dealing with any form of disciplinary 
action being taken.  This new policy, along with any amendments required 
to the Terms of Reference for Personnel Committee (CDC), Appointments 
and Personnel Committee (SNC) and Joint Personnel Committee (Both), 
and Joint Appeals Committee, and the two Appeals Committees (SNC and 

Page 10



 

   

CDC), will ensure a robust process is in place with the specified level of 
decision making to those Officers who may become involved in dealing 
with, and taking actions concerning staff misconduct and negligence. 
The revisions have been subject to consultation with affected staff and 
Unison at both Councils, the outcome of which is detailed in Section 4; 
Key Issues For Consideration. 
  

 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
4.1 The Council has an obligation to ensure its policies and procedures remain up 

to date in relation to the law and best practice as well as ensuring they meet 
Council Objectives, and mitigate as best as possible the risk of any complaint. 

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the proposal is believed 
to be the best way forward: 
 
Option One Approve the recommendation 

 
Option Two Reject the recommendation and retain the current policy. 
  
 
Consultations 

 

Trade Union The Trade Union at each Councils has advised that it has 
no comments on the amendments being proposed.  

JMT Consultation This is currently underway. To date there has been no 
comments from any of the affected staff, with consultation 
ending on 21 August 2013. In light of annual leave this 
consultation period has been extended to enable every 
Member of JMT to feel confident that they have had the 
opportunity to respond to the proposed changes and for 
the Councils to be confident that the process of 
consultation was meaningful.  On this basis a verbal 
update will be given to the Committee should any further 
comments be obtained. 

 
 
Implications 

 

Financial: There are no financial implications arising directly from 
this report. 

 Comments checked by Martin Henry, Director of 
Resources, Tel 0300 003 0102 
martin.henry@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  

Legal: If the policy is approved then this will reduce the likely 
success of any legal challenge by employees (JMT 
members) and trade unions in relation to the process for 
disciplinary action being taken. With the amendments 
proposed it will ensure that both the policy and the 
Committees’ Terms of Reference work together and are 
consistent so that there are appropriate delegations and 
authorities to be able to make decisions and apply the 
sanctions proposed.  

 Comments checked by Kevin Lane, Head of Law and 
Governance, Tel 0300 0030107 

Page 11



 

   

kevin.lane@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

Risk Management: In adopting the revised policy the Council seeks to further 
eliminate potential risk to employees, service users and 
the organisation by ensuring clarity of guidance and 
consistency of approach at both Councils and by all 
managers. 

 Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate 
Performance Manager, Tel – 0300 0030113 
claire.taylor@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk.  

 
 
Wards Affected 

 
All 

 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 Joint Staff Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy 

Background Papers 

N/A 

Report Author Paula Goodwin, HR Projects and Policy Manager 

Contact 
Information 

01295 221735 

 

Page 12



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 1 of 26 August 2013   

 

 

 

STAFF DISCIPLINARY AND DISMISSAL POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
 

 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 Disciplinary rules and procedures are necessary for encouraging fairness and 
consistency in the treatment of people at work. It is recognised that effective 
performance monitoring and managerial support should reduce the need for formal 
disciplinary action. 

 
1.2 The day to day supervision of employees is part of the normal managerial process and 

is outside the scope of this procedure. Any shortcomings should be brought to the 
employee’s attention as soon as possible in an effort to achieve an improvement in an 
informal way. The aim of both informal and formal disciplinary measures is to improve 
the performance of an employee with a view to helping them to fulfil their duties and 
responsibilities successfully. 

 
1.3 The procedure is designed to establish the facts quickly and deal consistently with 

disciplinary issues. 
 

1.3.1 Employees will be advised of the nature of any complaint against them and they will 
have the opportunity to explain. 

1.3.2 Employees will be given the opportunity to state their case and be represented or 
accompanied by a colleague or Trade Union representative of their choice. 

1.3.3 Employees will not normally be dismissed for a first breach of discipline except in the 
case of gross misconduct. 

1.3.4 Employees will have a right of appeal against any disciplinary penalty or action taken. 

1.3.5 The level of warning issued by a manager (or Committee in the case of JNC Officers) 
will depend on the severity of the misconduct. The sanction for gross misconduct will 
normally be dismissal without notice and without pay in lieu of notice. 

1.3.6 Where an employee's record shows a pattern of recorded disciplinary issues, e.g. 
repeated misconduct occurring once a live warning has lapsed, the Council may 
consider extending the duration of any warning or escalating any new action against 
the employee to the next stage of the policy (i.e. as if the prior live warning had not 
lapsed). 

1.3.7 Timescales for meetings, appeals etc, may be varied by mutual agreement. The 
intention is to avoid unreasonable delay but to allow for reasonable flexibility. 

Page 13



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 2 of 26 August 2013   

1.3.8 An employee will be given a copy of this procedure before any formal disciplinary 
action commences about their misconduct. 

1.3.9 All matters relating to this procedure must be treated as confidential. 
 
1.4 This policy takes account of the amendments made as a result of the Employment Act 

2008, which repealed the Employment Act 2002 (Dispute Resolution) Regulations 
2004, the introduction of the ACAS Code of Practice on disciplinary and grievance 
procedures from 6 April 2009 and the JNC Conditions of Service for Chief Officers. 

 
1.5 The Councils will review this document from time to time and may make changes to 

the content. Changes may result from employee, management and UNISON feedback 
and/or from changes in employment legislation. 

 
1.6 This policy does not form part of the contract of employment. 
 
2. Scope 

 
2.1 This policy and accompanying guidelines apply to ALL posts at both Cherwell District 

Council and South Northamptonshire Council with the exception of the statutory roles 
of Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service), Monitoring Officer and Finance Section 151 
Officer for which separate statutory procedures apply 

 
2.2 This policy and accompanying guidelines do not apply to employees who are within 

their probationary period or in the case of redundancy, ill health retirement or a 
dismissal at the expiry of the term of a fixed contract. 

 

2.3 Both Council’s will consider disciplinary action against an employee for actions inside 
or outside of work which may have a bearing on an employee's continued employment 
or on the reputation of the Council. Employees must notify their managers immediately 
of any charge or conviction. 

2.4 Issues arising as a result of misconduct/negligence will be dealt with under the 
Disciplinary Policy, whereas issues which relate to poor performance as a result of a 
lack of capability will generally be dealt with under the Council's Capability Policy 
(CDC) or Performance & Attendance Review Policy (SNC). 

Page 14



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 3 of 26 August 2013   

3. Rules 
 
3.1 Rules are needed to set standards of conduct for employees to follow. At both 

councils, corporate rules are contained in the contract of employment and in 
employment policies and procedures. They may be supplemented by other rules or 
requirements particular to a service area. Rules will be kept to a minimum but will 
include (not an exhaustive list): 

 
3.1.1 Attendance/Timekeeping 

3.1.2 Absence 

3.1.3 Damage to Council property 

3.1.4 Discrimination 

3.1.5 Harassment or Bullying 

3.1.6 Health and Safety 

3.1.7 Smoking on Council property, including vehicles, with the exception of designated 
smoking areas 

3.1.8 Unreasonable failure to follow an instruction issued by a manager or supervisor 

3.1.9 Unsatisfactory work performance (where this isn't classified as capability) 
 
4. Principles 

 
4.1 The principles of this policy are to ensure that: 
 
4.1.1 disciplinary procedures are applied in a fair and consistent way 

4.1.2 disciplinary procedures only take place when employees are aware of the standards 
that are expected of them relating to their attitude/conduct and performance as defined 
in policies and procedures made available to the employee during employment 

4.1.3 disciplinary procedures are applied primarily to help and encourage employees to 
improve rather than just as a way of imposing a punishment 

4.1.4 whenever possible informal and low-key methods are used in resolving difficulties 
around minor misconduct or unsatisfactory performance 

4.1.5 whenever possible reasonable adjustments will be made for employees with a 
disability 

4.1.6 employees will receive written confirmation of the allegation made and are aware of 
any investigations or disciplinary hearings due to take place 

4.1.7 employees have the opportunity to state their case before any decision is reached by 
the disciplinary panel  

4.1.8 the disciplinary panel will be  independent  having no prior knowledge of the case and 
with no potential conflict of interest 

Page 15



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 4 of 26 August 2013   

4.1.9 all allegations are investigated fully and a disciplinary hearing takes place before 
formal disciplinary action is agreed 

4.1.10 all formal disciplinary action is appropriate and proportionate to the nature of the 
disciplinary offence 

4.1.11 at all stages of the formal process employees are aware of their right to be 
accompanied by a fellow worker, or trade union representative 

4.1.12 in reaching decisions about appropriate sanctions, the disciplinary panel will take 
account of any mitigating circumstances 

4.1.13 employees receive a written explanation for any disciplinary action taken, setting out 
what improvement is expected and within what timescale and informing them of their 
right of appeal 

4.1.14 we will not dismiss any employee for a first breach of discipline except in the case of 
gross misconduct where the chair deems dismissal to be appropriate 

4.1.15 employees have the right of appeal in relation to any disciplinary sanction taken.  
 

5. Employee's Responsibilities 
 
5.1 All employees have a responsibility to: 
 
5.1.1 take full accountability for their actions and inactions 

5.1.2 maintain expected and reasonable levels of attendance and performance at work 

5.1.3 respect and work in line with the Council's Code of Conduct 

5.1.4 attend and participate in relevant meetings 

5.1.5 comply with the Council's policies 

5.1.6 conform with any Council or statutory rules or agreements applicable to their role 

5.1.7 maintain a reasonable standard of behaviour acceptable to management and other 
employees including behaviour as outlined in the Code of Conduct and in line with the 
Equal Opportunities policies. 

 

6. Support for Employees and Managers 

6.1 Employees may contact HR for support and guidance. UNISON is also able to offer 
support and guidance to employees who are members of the union and who are facing 
potential disciplinary action. 

7. The Policy 

7.1 The disciplinary policy contains the following possible stages (these are not meant to 
be undertaken in sequence); 

7.1.1 Suspension 

7.1.2 Informal action 

Page 16



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 5 of 26 August 2013   

7.1.3 Formal stage - Stage 1 oral recorded warning 

7.1.4 Formal stage - Stage 2 written warning 

7.1.5 Formal stage - Stage 3 Final written warning 

7.1.6 Formal stage - Stage 4a) dismissal with pay or with pay in lieu of notice and 4b) 
summary dismissal 

7.1.7 Formal stage - Exceptional circumstances- alternatives to dismissal 
 

8. Informal Stage 

8.1 In the course of day to day activities there will be occasions when managers will need 
to advise employees informally of minor breaches of discipline. Mediation may be used 
as an alternative way of managing a situation informally. This does not preclude the 
use of formal disciplinary procedures. Managers should record any such action for 
their own reference as information will not be placed on the employee’s personal file. 

 
9. Formal Stage 

 
9.1 Where a line manager feels that an allegation about an employee’s attitude/conduct or 

performance is serious enough to warrant an investigation s/he should follow the 
formal disciplinary procedure as outlined within this policy. 

 
9.2 Adjustments to the Procedure 
 

When following the formal disciplinary procedure line managers are required under the 
Disability Discrimination Act 1995 to make reasonable adjustments for employees with 
a disability. Where a line manager is already aware that an employee has a disability 
or believes this to be the case they should work closely with HR before taking any 
disciplinary action, seeking advice from the council’s occupational health advisers if 
necessary. 

 
10. Suspension 

 

10.1 The Councils may decide to suspend an employee pending an investigation. A 
manager or supervisor may, in exceptional circumstances, send an employee home 
pending a decision about suspension rather than suspend immediately.   

 
10.2 Suspension is not a disciplinary measure, and is not pre-judging the outcome of a 

disciplinary investigation or possible disciplinary hearing. Any such suspension will be 
with full basic pay. It is a means by which the Council can protect its interests, and 
those of its employees, while an investigation takes place. 

 
 
 
 

Page 17



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 6 of 26 August 2013   

10.3 Decision Making Responsibility for Suspension of an Employee 

The decision to suspend an employee will normally be the responsibility of the Head of 
Transformation (or delegated other HR representative) and/or the Monitoring Officer, in 
conjunction with the employee’s line manager.  

The decision to suspend a member of JMT (in a shared post) can only be made by the 
Joint Personnel Committee in conjunction with the Head of Paid Service, or in 
circumstances where the member of JMT is employed by a single Council, the 
decision will be made by the respective Personnel Committee. Where circumstances 
require suspension to be made quickly, the Head of Paid Service will have the ability to 
suspend a member of JMT, following consultation with the relevant chairman from the 
appropriate committee. 

 
10.4 The duration of the suspension will vary according to the situation but timescales will 

be as short as reasonably possible and the employee will be given weekly updates by 
either their line manager or the Investigating Officer (this should be agreed at the 
outset of the investigation) as to progress. A log should be kept by the line manager of 
any communications made between the employee and the organisation. 

 
10.5 Suspension should take place on a face to face basis at a meeting, and then written 

confirmation should be given to the employee concerned as soon as is reasonably 
possible either at the meeting or immediately afterwards confirming the suspension is 
on full pay and a review date. 

 
10.6 If suspension of an employee is contemplated, alternatives should always be 

considered, such as a temporary relocation or reallocation of duties, or a short ‘cooling 
off period’ (e.g. the remainder of the working day), or, if repetition of the offence is 
possible, enhanced supervision or monitoring of the employee. Where suspension has 
taken place, it should be reviewed at regular intervals during the investigation to see if 
it is appropriate to keep it in place. Any decision to end a suspension before an agreed 
end date will be made by those who agreed to the suspension in the first place, and 
should be done in consultation with HR. 

 
10.7 Suspension should be considered on the following grounds: 
 
10.7.1 the allegations could constitute gross misconduct; and/or 

10.7.2 the continued presence at work of one or more of the employees involved would 
impede a full and impartial investigation (e.g. they may have access to certain records, 
contact with other employees who may be associated with the investigation or may be 
likely to sabotage the investigation deliberately); or 

10.7.3 there is considered to be a chance of a recurrence of the alleged offence. 
 
10.8 During the period of suspension, the employee remains employed by the relevant 

council but they are not required to attend work.  They must, however, be contactable 
and available to attend work if required and should not undertake any outside work of 

Page 18



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 7 of 26 August 2013   

any nature during normal working hours including out of hours/standby rota duties or 
overtime.  They must also be available to participate in the investigatory process. 

 
10.9 Where the Investigating Officer has reason to believe that the employee concerned 

has committed a criminal offence they will immediately inform the Monitoring Officer 
who will decide whether to report the matter to the police. 

 
10.10 Suspension or redeployment may be deemed appropriate in cases of personal 

harassment or bullying. If suspension or redeployment is deemed appropriate in cases 
of personal harassment or bullying, generally, it will be the alleged harasser who is 
suspended or moved. 

 
11. Investigation in Alleged Misconduct 
 
11.1 Prior to any potential disciplinary action, an investigation will be conducted into the 

allegations of misconduct by an appointed Investigation Officer. The matter must be 
investigated in order to ascertain, so far as is reasonably practicable in the 
circumstances, all the relevant facts. Whether a particular employee was involved or 
not is for a disciplinary hearing to decide, not an investigation. 

 
11.2 For all posts other than Directors and Heads of Service, the Investigating Officer will 

be appointed by the Head of Transformation or the Monitoring Officer (if the 
investigation implicates members of the HR team and independence is required). All 
Investigating Officers will have been trained in undertaking investigations.  

 
11.3 The Investigating Officer should be at a level either equivalent to or higher than the 

employee being investigated, and depending on the nature of the investigation is also 
likely to be from an independent service area. The Investigating Officer will usually be 
an employee who will not have a conflict of interest that might prejudice a fair hearing, 
but may be appointed externally if it considered necessary. 

 
11.4 Investigations Relating to Directors and Heads of Service (JMT).  
 

The decision to conduct an investigation into the alleged misconduct of a Head of 
Service or Director must be made by either the Joint Personnel Committee (JPC) or 
the appropriate Personnel Committee of either Council.   
 
Once the decision has been made to investigate, the investigation should be 
undertaken by the Monitoring Officer or an external Independent Investigating Officer.  
 
Independent Investigating Officers will be appointed by the appropriate Personnel 
Committee. (Joint Personnel Committee for shared Directors or Heads of Service or 
either Appointments and Personnel Committee at SNC or Personnel Committee at 
CDC for non shared posts). Investigating Officers will be supported by a member of 
the HR team during investigations to ensure the process is followed correctly and to 
provide any advice. 

Page 19



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 8 of 26 August 2013   

 
11.5 Generally employees will be informed that an investigation is to take place. In some 

circumstances (e.g. potential fraud), it may be appropriate not to inform the employee 
at the commencement of the investigation. If necessary, covert surveillance may be 
used subject to consultation with the Monitoring Officer and the completion of a privacy 
impact assessment in accordance with the Information Commissioner’s guidance on 
the monitoring of employees. In exceptional circumstances, the use of surveillance will 
be sanctioned by the Monitoring Officer (in consultation with HR) giving reasons why 
its use is necessary. 

 
11.6 Where, during the investigation, the alleged disciplinary matter appears to be one of 

gross misconduct, the employee’s line manager and the employee’s Head of Service 
or Director will be informed immediately by the Investigating Officer. HR should also be 
informed for monitoring purposes. In such cases, the employee in question may be 
immediately suspended from work on pay pending the results of an investigation into 
the matter. Such grounds are outlined later in this policy. 

 
11.7 Where the alleged disciplinary matter is straightforward, the investigation may be brief 

and ideally take no longer than 28 working days in any case. In more complex 
situations, investigations may take longer and employees will be kept appraised of 
progress by their line manager or the Investigating Officer on a weekly basis. The 
employee will be advised in writing should any additional allegations arise during an 
investigation. 

 
11.8 The Investigating Officer may wish to interview the employee(s) and any witnesses. 

The employee may be represented at such an interview by either a work colleague or 
a trade union official in accordance with the Employment Relations Act 1999, providing 
that this does not unreasonably delay the investigation. The decision as to whether or 
not any delay is unreasonable rests with the person investigating the matter. If the 
person conducting the investigation wishes to pursue this course of action they should 
consult the Head of Transformation (or delegated other HR representative). 

 
11.9 In conducting the investigation, the person investigating should ensure that they have 

spoken to all relevant witnesses and obtained signed statements. Any witnesses 
should be advised that they may be called to attend any subsequent disciplinary 
hearing. 

 
11.10 Once the investigation is complete the Investigating Officer will write a report on 

his/her findings and present it to the employee’s Head of Service (or Director if the 
employee’s service area has no Head of Service) or Monitoring Officer (if appropriate). 
This person may, upon seeing the results of the investigation, decide that there is no 
case to answer and therefore no reason to convene a disciplinary hearing. 
Alternatively it may be decided that a disciplinary hearing should be convened. 

 
11.11 In the case of Heads of Service and Directors, the investigation findings and report will 

be presented to the Joint Personnel Committee (JPC), or respective Personnel 

Page 20



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 9 of 26 August 2013   

Committee of the employing authority in cases where post holders are not employed in 
joint roles. 

 
11.12 The depth and range of an investigation and the content of a report to any potential 

disciplinary hearing will depend on the seriousness and/or complexity of the 
allegations in question. 

 
11.13 The following issues may be considered relevant to be considered for inclusion. This 

list is not exhaustive and, depending on the circumstances, there may be other items 
considered relevant. 

 
11.13.1 Information about the employee concerned, e.g. length of service, experience, training 

undertaken, previous ‘live’ warnings. 

11.13.2 Relevant documents, such as Council procedures (or appropriate extracts) 

11.13.3 Witness statements (including where relevant/available an explanation of the alleged 
conduct on the part of the employee). 

11.13.4 Informal actions (or why informal guidance/counselling is not appropriate in view of the 
seriousness of the allegation). 

 
11.14 It is not the role of the Investigating Officer to recommend any level of disciplinary 

action, but they should state whether or not any further action should follow as a result 
of the investigation. This might include: 

 

• No further action to be taken 

• Counselling, keep under review, management action, training 

• A disciplinary hearing is required 
 
11.15 The line manager, Joint Personnel Committee or appropriate Personnel Committee 

may deliver the outcome to the employee at a meeting if it is deemed appropriate, but 
any outcome will also be confirmed in writing to the employee and their line manager. 
A copy of the investigation report will also be attached. 

 
12. Requirement to Attend a Disciplinary Hearing Following Investigation. 

 
12.1 Once the Head of Service/Director or Monitoring Officer, Joint Personnel Committee or 

appropriate Personnel Committee has considered the recommendation of the 
Investigating Officer and the employee has been advised that disciplinary action will be 
taken as an outcome of the investigation, the employee will be written to: 

 
12.1.1 including details of the allegations made, and whether they are being considered as 

gross misconduct 

12.1.2 inviting them to a disciplinary hearing stating the time and place of the hearing and 
giving at least 5 working days’ notice 

Page 21



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 10 of 26 August 2013   

12.1.3 informing them who will chair the hearing and form part of the panel or committee 

12.1.4 informing them that they have the right to be accompanied by a work colleague or 
trained trade union representative at the hearing 

12.1.5 informing them that they will be supplied with copies of any additional documents to be 
referred to in the hearing at least 2 working days in advance of the hearing for panels 
and at the time of agenda publication for Committees (in exceptional circumstances 
witness statements may need to be anonymous) 

12.1.6 asking them to submit any documents supporting their response to the allegations to 
the relevant member of the HR team (or Democratic/Elections team if the panel is a 
Committee) at least 2 working days in advance of the hearing to a panel or prior to 
agenda publication for a Committee so that these documents can be referred to in the 
hearing 

12.1.7 reminding the employee about the disciplinary policy by providing a hard copy. 

12.1.8 informing the employee of the right to bring their own witnesses, providing that they 
have been named, and provided at least 2 days notice of their intention to do so 

 
12.2 The purpose of a disciplinary hearing is to establish the facts of the case, and to 

decide what action (if any) should be taken. 
 
13. The Disciplinary Panel (Non JMT Officers) 

 
13.1 The disciplinary panel will consist of two officers; a Chairman and an HR Advisor for all 

employees with the exception of Directors and Heads of Service (see para 13.2 
below). 

 
13.2 The Disciplinary Panel for JMT 
 
13.3 For Directors and Heads of Service the panel will comprise the Joint Personnel 

Committee (JPC). 
 
13.4 The JPC has responsibility for hearing and determining (including investigating)  

disciplinary allegations at Director and Head of Service level and/or appointing an 
independent person to do so.  

 
 Note: Where a Director or Head of Service is employed solely by one Council and is 

not in a shared post, the panel referred to in 13.3 would be replaced with either the 
Personnel Committee at CDC and Appointments and Personnel Committee at SNC. 
The composition of the disciplinary panel being determined by the identity of the 
employee’s employing Council. 

Page 22



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 11 of 26 August 2013   

 
 

13.2 Roles of all parties involved in a disciplinary hearing are as follows: 
 
13.2.1 Chairman – a manager authorised to hear the case, possibly from a different service 

team and more senior in position than the employee. (In the case of a committee 
hearing associated with JMT this would be the nominated Chair of the committee).  

Whoever is intending to chair the hearing must have been appropriately trained in 
discipline handling and must have delegated authority as defined in the Constitution of 
the employing authority to determine the appropriate sanction if action is considered 
necessary.  

Under no circumstances can an officer chairing a hearing take disciplinary action that 
is reserved for a more senior manager. The person who chairs the hearing will not be 
a person who will have been involved in any previous investigation or disciplinary 
hearing concerning the employee. 

13.2.2 Employee – opportunity to state their case, answer the allegations, call any relevant 
witnesses and ask questions of any witnesses. 

13.2.3 Investigating Officer – appointed by Human Resources and appropriately trained, 
they will present their investigation findings to the Chair as part of the management 
case.  

For Directors and Heads of Service the Investigating Officer role will be determined by 
the relevant committee who may nominate an external Independent Investigating 
Officer. 

13.2.4 Witness – a person invited by the employee or the investigating officer to give their 
statement of events relating to the allegations of the case. 

13.2.5 HR Advisor – accompanies the Chairman on the panel and ensures that the 
employee and Chair have copies of all documents relating to the hearing and advises 
all parties on disciplinary procedures where necessary. For any potential dismissal the 
Head of Service with delegated responsibilities for dismissal should accompany the 
HR Advisor, as the Chair of the panel. This does not apply to Directors or Heads of 
Service where the Terms of Reference for the appropriate committee will be used.  

13.2.6 Colleague/Trained Trade Union Representative - may present the case on behalf of 
the employee, which could include making opening and closing statements, presenting 
the case, and asking questions of any witnesses. 

13.2.7 Note taker – takes notes of the hearing and circulates final version to employee, chair 
and HR advisor or committee if appropriate. Audio and video recording of the hearing 
will only be used with the agreement of all parties. 
 

14. The Disciplinary Hearing 
 

14.1 A disciplinary hearing can be a very traumatic and stressful experience for any 
employee, regardless of whether they are the employee against whom the allegations 
are made, or a witness to either side. It is therefore the role and responsibility of the 

Page 23



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 12 of 26 August 2013   

Chair of the hearing to ensure that arguments and unpleasantness are avoided.  If the 
hearing shows any signs of getting out of control, it is advisable to call an adjournment 
for a few minutes to allow the situation to calm down. 

 
14.1.1 The management case will normally be presented by the person who undertook the 

investigation, calling witnesses as necessary. 

14.1.2 The employee (and their representative, if present) will then have the opportunity to 
state their case, again with the provision to call witnesses as necessary. 

14.1.3 Each side will have the opportunity to ask relevant questions of the other side, 
including their witnesses, and to sum up at the end of the hearing.  The management 
representative will sum up first, followed by the employee. 

14.1.4 If witnesses are called, they will attend the hearing solely to make their statement and 
to answer questions. They will then withdraw. 

14.1.5 If, during the hearing, substantial documentary evidence which has not previously 
been disclosed is produced by either side, the other party shall have the right to 
request an adjournment in order to allow sufficient time to examine the evidence. The 
Chair has the discretion to decide whether evidence can be submitted as time has 
previously been allowed for both parties to submit evidence, and therefore new 
evidence should be in exceptional circumstances only. 

14.1.6 Other than when parties are summing up, the panel or Committee can ask questions 
of either side. 

14.1.7 At the end of the hearing both sides will withdraw while the panel or Committee and 
any advisers consider their decision. 

14.1.8 At the end of the decision making adjournment, the employee (and their 
representative, if present) and the person presenting the management case will be re-
called and given the decision, which will be confirmed in writing, normally within 5 
working days.  If the decision is to apply a disciplinary sanction, the employee must 
also be informed of their right of appeal. 

14.1.9 In exceptional circumstances, where it is considered necessary to delay making a 
decision, the employee will be informed of this decision, and advised when and how 
they will be notified of the decision in respect of the disciplinary hearing. .  This will be 
done as soon as possible and normally no later than 5 working days after the date of 
the hearing. 

14.1.10 If at any stage during the course of the hearing the person chairing the hearing 
believes it necessary to obtain additional advice, the proceedings will be adjourned 
whilst this advice is sought. 

 

Page 24



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 13 of 26 August 2013   

15. Disciplinary Sanctions 
 
15.1 Following a disciplinary hearing the following sanctions may apply: 
 
15.1.1 Stage 1 - Oral Recorded Warning 

 If following a disciplinary meeting it is decided that an employee's conduct or 
performance is unsatisfactory, the employee will be issued with an oral recorded 
warning. This will be a `live warning' for a duration of 3 months, after which it will be 
disregarded for disciplinary purposes, subject to no further misconduct during this 
period. A copy of the note of warning will remain on the employee's personal file for the 
duration of the oral warning. Managers will hold regular review meetings with 
employees who have a `live' warning. 

15.1.2 Stage 2 - Written Warning 

 This may be issued if the first offence is serious enough to warrant action at this level. 
Alternatively it may be issued after an oral recorded warning, if there is no 
improvement in standards, or if a further offence occurs. A copy of this written warning 
will be kept on file but will be disregarded for disciplinary purposes after 6 months, 
subject to satisfactory conduct and/or performance. Managers will hold regular review 
meetings with employees who have a `live' warning. 

15.1.3 Stage 3 - Final Written Warning 

 This may be issued if the first offence is serious enough to warrant action at this level. 
Alternatively it may be issued after an oral recorded warning, or a written warning, 
depending on the severity of any subsequent misconduct or the failure to achieve 
required standards of performance/ conduct. A copy of the warning will be filed but will 
be disregarded for disciplinary purposes after the end of the sanction. In exceptional 
cases the period of the warning may be extended to 24 months rather than 12 months 
when the sanction is given. Managers will hold regular review meetings with 
employees who have a `live' warning. 

15.1.4 Stage 4a - Dismissal with Pay 

 If there is no satisfactory improvement or if further serious misconduct occurs following 
previous warnings, after a consideration of the facts and circumstances of the case, an 
employee may be dismissed with notice or with pay in lieu of notice. 

15.1.5 Stage 4b - Gross Misconduct 
 If, after investigation, an employee is found to have committed an act of gross 

misconduct, the normal consequence will be summary dismissal without any notice or 
pay in lieu of notice. While the alleged gross misconduct is being investigated, 
employees may be suspended with pay. 

 
15.1.6 Other sanctions may include demotion, withholding pay increments or temporary 

removal/reduction of benefits. 
 

Page 25



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 14 of 26 August 2013   

15.2 Examples of Misconduct 
 This list is neither exclusive nor exhaustive 

 
 The following list indicates the type of conduct which would normally constitute 

misconduct: 
 
15.2.1 Disregard of safety practices, procedures and rules 

15.2.2 Unsatisfactory job performance (for reasons other than incapability) 

15.2.3 Poor time-keeping: late starting, early finishing, excessive break periods 

15.2.4 Excessive and/or unauthorised absence 

15.2.5 Leaving the workplace without permission during working hours 

15.2.6 Undertaking activities detrimental to recovery whilst on sick leave 

15.2.7 Failure to follow Council procedures 

15.2.8 Misuse of Council facilities or equipment, for example telephones, Information and 
Communication Technology equipment 

15.2.9 Insubordination or refusal to obey a reasonable instruction 

15.2.10 Smoking in prohibited areas. 

 

15.3 Examples of Gross Misconduct 
 This list is neither exclusive nor exhaustive 

 

 Gross misconduct includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
 
15.3.1 Serious abuse 

15.3.2 Corrupt practices 

15.3.3 Where an employee is charged with a criminal offence inconsistent with their position 

15.3.4 theft, fraud and deliberate falsification of records (e.g. expenses claims, time sheets, 
etc) 

15.3.5 physical violence, threats, fighting, assault on another person 

15.3.6 serious bullying, harassment or discrimination 

15.3.7 deliberate damage to Council property or employee's property 

15.3.8 removal or disposal of any Council property without Management's permission 

15.3.9 serious insubordination 

15.3.10 interference with safety devices or equipment putting other employees or visitors at 
risk at work 

15.3.11 serious misuse of the Council's property or name 

15.3.12 bringing the Council into serious disrepute 

Page 26



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 15 of 26 August 2013   

15.3.13 serious incapability whilst on duty brought on by alcohol or illegal drugs, the mis-use of 
drugs or the possession of illegal drugs whilst at work 

15.3.14 the supply and trafficking of drugs, money laundering activities, or the use, sale or 
distribution of illegal substances 

15.3.15 serious negligence which causes or might cause unacceptable loss, damage or injury 

15.3.16 serious infringement of health and safety rules 

15.3.17 serious breach of duty of confidence (subject to the Public Interest (Disclosure) Act 
1998 or as revised on 25 June 2013, and Confidential Reporting Policy) 

15.3.18 deliberate or reckless damage, mis-use or interference with or unauthorised use of the 
Council computers and/or software or unauthorised entry to computer records 

15.3.19 serious misuse of electronic systems 

15.3.20 conviction of a criminal offence that is relevant to the employee's employment 

15.3.21 deliberate falsification of a qualification that is a stated requirement of the employee's 
employment or results in financial gain to the employee 

15.3.22 undertaking private work on the premises and/or in working hours without express 
prior permission 

15.3.23 serious breach of trust or confidence 

 

15.4 Warnings 
 
 If issued with a warning, an employee will receive written confirmation within 5 working 

days of the disciplinary hearing. This letter will include: 
 
15.4.1 the reason and duration of the warning 

15.4.2 the consequences of a failure to improve and sustain any improvement for at least the 
duration of the warning, including the possibility of further disciplinary action up to and 
including dismissal 

15.4.3 relevant details and timescales relating to the employee's right of appeal 

15.4.4 employees will have access to notes of the meeting (or a recording of the meeting in 
some circumstances). 

 
 Note: Employees should also be written to in the event of no further action being 

taken. 
 

16. Factors To Consider When Deciding What Disciplinary Sanction To Apply 
 
16.1 Having heard all the evidence at a disciplinary hearing, the Chair or, in the case of 

Heads of Services and Directors, the appropriate Committee will need to decide 
whether or not disciplinary action is warranted and, if so, at what level. 

 

Page 27



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 16 of 26 August 2013   

16.2 A disciplinary hearing is not the same as a court of law, where the defendant has to be 
proved guilty. The judgement to be made after hearing all the evidence is whether or 
not, on the balance of probabilities, the misconduct occurred. 

 
16.3 In arriving at the decision, the following questions should be considered: 
 

• Have all the relevant facts been ascertained? 

• Was the individual given a chance to put his/her case? 

• On the balance of probabilities is it reasonable to believe that the misconduct has 
occurred? 

 
16.4 Unless the answer to all 3 questions  is yes, a disciplinary sanction should not be 

imposed upon the employee. 
 
16.5 Having decided that the misconduct has taken place, the Chair of the hearing, or in the 

case of Heads of Service and Directors, the appropriate Committee, should then 
decide upon an appropriate sanction  . 

 

16.6 The following questions will need to be considered: 
 

• What sanctions have been imposed in similar cases in the past? 

• Does the disciplinary procedure give any guidance as to whether or not this type of 
misconduct normally constitutes misconduct or gross misconduct? 

• What is the employee’s disciplinary record: is he/she already in receipt of some kind of 
disciplinary warning? 

• Are there any extenuating circumstances, for example provocation, justifiable ignorance 
of the rules, lack of experience, etc? 

 
16.7 The person chairing a disciplinary hearing will also need to take into account the level 

of sanction he/she is authorised to take under the terms of the Disciplinary Procedure 
and in accordance with the relevant Constitution (see section 17 below) 

 
16.8 Once all the above have been considered and a tentative decision reached, the 

following three questions should be considered: 
 

• Is the misconduct sufficiently serious to warrant the proposed level of sanction? 

• Is it consistent with good practice? 

• Is the proposed sanction reasonable given all the circumstances? 
 
 Unless the answer to all 3 of the above is yes, the proposed sanction should be 

reconsidered. 
 

Page 28



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 17 of 26 August 2013   

17. Levels of Delegated AuthorityTo Take Action Under the Disciplinary Policy? 

17.1 It is possible to take disciplinary action at any level for a first disciplinary offence 
dependent on the circumstances. Table A below sets out the levels of delegated 
authority to take disciplinary action at the various stages, and reflects the Constitution 
of both Councils. 

 
 

EMPLOYEE 
GROUP 

STAGE ACTION RESPONSIBILITY 
(HR to be consulted about 
process and consistency of 
proposed action) 

APPEALS DURATION 
OF 
WARNINGS 

All staff except 
JMT Members 

ONE Oral 
Warning 

Line Manager or above HOS/Director 3 months 

 TWO Written 
Warning 

Line Manager or above (or 
nominated other from another 
service area) 

HOS/Director 6 months 

 THREE Final Written 
Warning 

Line Manager or above (or 
nominated other from another 
service area) 

HOS/Director 12 months (or 
may be longer 
in exceptional 
circumstances 

 FOUR Dismissal Head of Service/Director or 
delegated other HR 
representative 

SNC Appeals 
Committee or CDC 
Appeals Panel* 

N/A 

 GROSS 
MISCONDUCT 

Summary 
Dismissal 

Head of Service/Director or 
delegated other HR 
representative 

SNC Appeals 
Committee or CDC 
Appeals Panel* 

N/A 

HEADS OF 
SERVICE & 
STRATEGIC 
DIRECTORS 

ALL Any formal 
action 

Joint Personnel Committee (or 
for any other posts at this level 
not shared the employing 
Council’s equivalent personnel 
committee. (SNC – 
Appointments and Personnel 
Committee and CDC Personnel 
Committee). 

Joint Appeals 
Committee or for 
any other posts at 
this level not shared 
then the employing 
Council’s equivalent 
appeals committee 
(SNC Appeals 
Committee or CDC 
Appeals Panel)* 

N/A 

 
18. Disciplinary Action of Trade Union Representatives 
 
18.1 Although normal disciplinary standards will apply to the conduct and performance of 

trade union representatives, no disciplinary action will be taken until the circumstances 
of the case have been discussed with the individual concerned, a senior trade union 
representative or full time official and in consultation with HR. This arrangement is in 
place to avoid the action being misconstrued as an attack on the union itself or on its 
representation and negotiating role, and is in accordance with the ACAS Code of 
Practice. 

 
19. Raising a Grievance During Disciplinary Action 
 
19.1 The decision to suspend or continue with disciplinary action pending the investigation 

of a grievance will depend upon the circumstances of each individual case. This 
decision will be made by  Human Resources (or Monitoring Officer if applicable). 

 

Page 29



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 18 of 26 August 2013   

20. Suspicion of Criminal Behaviour 
 
20.1 If criminal behaviour is suspected or alleged the Investigating Officer in conjunction 

with HR (and the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer, if the action is against Heads 
of Service or Directors) will discuss the situation and a decision will be taken over 
notifying the police in line with the Council's Standing Orders/Financial Regulations. 

 
21. Criminal Proceedings During Disciplinary Action 
 
21.1 Where criminal proceedings are pending against an employee, the Council will 

determine whether disciplinary action is appropriate. Where it is deemed appropriate, 
the disciplinary procedure will be carried out objectively and will not normally be 
delayed or deferred because of any such proceedings, unless it would be prejudicial 
(in the view of the Council) to those investigations to proceed. Line 
Managers/Investigating Officers should liaise with HR for further guidance. 

 
22.  Criminal Charges or Convictions/Inappropriate Actions Out of Work 
 
22.1 In addition, criminal charges or convictions may result in disciplinary proceedings 

being taken against the employee up to and including summary dismissal. This will 
occur where, in the opinion of the Council the charge or conviction is such as to affect, 
or be likely to affect, the suitability of the employee for the position in which they are 
employed, or the business or reputation of the Council, or where the existence of the 
charge or conviction could, in the opinion of the Council, otherwise seriously 
undermine the trust and confidence that the Council has in the employee. 

 
23. Fraud and Investigations 
 
23.1 Where there is any suspicion of theft or fraud the employee's manager must contact 

the Section 151 Officer who will refer the matter immediately to Audit and/or Fraud 
Investigation, and the Head of Transformation or the relevant Head of Service. 

 
24. Right of Appeal 
 
24.1 Employees have the right to appeal against any disciplinary action. 
 
 Reasons for appeal may include: 
 

• that the sanction is unfair/inconsistent under the circumstances (i.e. judgment) 

• new evidence has arisen which was not considered at the original disciplinary hearing 
and which may have a bearing on the outcome (i.e. facts) 

• that the policy and procedure have not been applied correctly (i.e. process) 
 
24.2 When lodging an appeal, the employee should state the grounds of an appeal, and 

provide any supporting evidence. 

Page 30



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 19 of 26 August 2013   

 
24.3 The employee must provide notice of their appeal in writing within 5 working days of 

being informed in writing of the disciplinary sanction being imposed against them. All 
appeal notifications should be sent to the Head of Transformation or HR Manager. A 
template appeal form is included at Appendix 12. 

 
24.4 Appeal hearings will take place as soon as reasonably possible upon receipt of the 

employee's written notice of appeal. Appeals Committees are likely to take longer to 
set up but will be done so as expediently as possible. 

 
24.5 Delegated Authority to Hear Appeals 
 
 Appeal hearings will be made up as follows: 
 

Employee Appealing/Reason Who Will Hear The Appeal 

Strategic Directors/Heads of Service 

 
Joint Appeals Committee or for any other posts at 
this level not shared then the employing Council’s 
equivalent appeals committee (SNC Appeals 
Committee or CDC Appeals Panel 

Other employee who is dismissed Employing Council ‘s Appeals Committee 

Other employee who is not 
dismissed 

Head of Service or Strategic Director (independent 
and trained) plus HR Representative 

 
* No members of the appeals panels will have been involved previously in the 
investigation or disciplinary hearing. 
 

24.6 For Appeals Committees there will be a Democratic and Elections Officer, Legal 
Advisor and HR Advisor in attendance (who will all previously have not been involved 
with the appeal at a previous stage – this may be external advisors if appropriate). 
These advisors will brief the Committee prior to the appeal hearing taking place. The 
advisors may at any point during the appeal seek clarification on any issue with regard 
to the appeal and will provide procedural guidance to the Committee. 

 
24.7 The employee shall be given notice in writing at least 5 working days in advance of the 

time and place of the appeal hearing and they will be allowed to be represented or 
accompanied and shall be entitled to call witnesses (but those witnesses are not 
entitled to representation). This notice may be extended to allow an employee to be 
adequately represented. 

 
24.8 The failure of a party to attend an appeal shall not prevent the appeal from being 

considered in their absence. In such circumstances the appellant will be notified in 
writing of the decision. 

 
24.9 The management side will be presented by the Chair of the disciplinary hearing who 

will be able to call witnesses who are not entitled to representation. 
 

Page 31



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 20 of 26 August 2013   

24.10 In advance of the hearing, the Appeals Panel or Committee will have available all of 
the documents presented to the original disciplinary hearing. They will also have a 
copy of the record of the hearing, the letter confirming the outcome of the original 
disciplinary hearing, the letter of appeal and all other relevant information. The 
employee and the management side will also be allowed to submit additional evidence 
that relates to the reasons for the appeal. The Appeals Panel or Committee should 
make their findings based on the documentation and the submissions at the appeal 
hearing. 

 
24.11 The employee (appellant) and management side (respondent) will provide any 

documentation they wish the panel or committee to consider prior to the deadline for 
agenda publication as notified by Law and Governance (for Committees) or no later 
than 5 working days before an appeals panel. Supplementary documentation 
produced after this time will only be admitted at the discretion of the panel or the 
committee and with agreement of all parties to the appeal subject to the provisions of 
Access to Information legislation. 

 
24.12 During the appeal hearing both parties to the appeal will be admitted to the room, the 

Chairman will introduce those present, the procedure will be outlined by either the 
Democratic and Elections Officer or the Chair of the panel (if not a Committee) and 
questions on the procedure will be invited. 

 
24.13 The employee (appellant) and their representative (if applicable) will make their case. 

The appellant may be questioned by the management side (respondent) and then the 
panel or Committee. 

 
24.14 The respondent will then make their case and may be questioned by the appellant and 

then the panel or Committee. In making their case witnesses may be called by the 
appellant or the respondent. Witnesses must be notified to the Democratic and 
Elections Officer (for Committees) or to the HR Advisor (for panels). This must be done 
by the deadline notified by the Democratic and Elections Officer (for Committees) or to 
the HR Advisor (for panels) at least 5 days before the appeal hearing. The respondent 
or appellant will be responsible for ensuring their witnesses are aware of the time, date 
and place of the hearing. Witnesses may be questioned by all parties and then the 
panel or Committee. Witnesses will only be admitted to the appeal hearing for the 
duration of their evidence. 

 
24.15 Where the panel or Committee considers that further information or discussion is 

required the meeting will be adjourned for a period. The length of the adjournment 
being decided by the Chair. 

 
24.16 At the end of the appeal hearing the respondent will have opportunity to sum up and 

then the appellant will have opportunity to sum up. Both parties will then be asked to 
adjourn. The panel or Committee will then decide whether to ask the parties to wait 
whilst a decision is reached or confirm that a letter will be sent confirming the outcome. 
The Appeals Committee or panel will then make their decision. A formal letter will be 

Page 32



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 21 of 26 August 2013   

sent to the appellant confirming the decision of the Appeals Committee or panel within 
5 working days of the appeal hearing. A copy of appeals information will be retained on 
the employee’s personal file. 

 

25. Appeal Outcomes 

25.1 The outcome of the appeal will be either: 
 
25.1.1 The appeal is successful in whole or in part, known as upheld (e.g. could be a lesser 

sanction imposed or the sanction could be removed altogether) 

25.2.2 The appeal is unsuccessful, known as rejected- the original decision stands 

 
25.2 The appeal panel or committee’s decision is final. No further internal right of appeal 

exists. 
 
25.3 Where an appeal against dismissal fails, the effective date of termination of 

employment will be the date on which the employee was originally dismissed, not the 
date of appeal. 

 

26. Disciplinary records 

 
26.1 The list of documents below may be kept on a personal file after a disciplinary process 

has taken place and will be kept on file in accordance with the Employment Practices 
Data Protection Code and Data Protection Act 1998: 

 

• documents relating to a disciplinary investigation, disciplinary hearing or appeal hearing 
including letters, notes from meetings and witness statements 

• a written record of any warning given including any verbal warning 

• written record of any further action sanctioned such as employee transfer, demotion, or 
written record of dismissal/summary dismissal 

 
26.2 All disciplinary documentation will be removed from personal files on the expiry of the 

sanction.   
 

 
Joint Issue 1: February 2012 
 
Joint Issue 2 Updated August 2013 

 

Page 33



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 22 of 26 August 2013   

Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 – Guidance to Conducting a Disciplinary Investigation 

Appendix 2 – Appeal Application Form 

  

 

Page 34



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 23 of 26 August 2013   

Appendix 1 - Guidance to Conducting a Disciplinary Investigation 
 
It should be made clear the difference between an investigatory hearing (the 
purpose of which is to establish the facts and not to make any decisions based 
on these facts), and a disciplinary hearing (the purpose of which is to determine 
whether there are any grounds to impose a disciplinary sanction on the 
employee). Those involved in undertaking investigations should take care: 
 

• not to jump to conclusions prematurely 

• to restrict their activities to investigating the facts, rather than making 
decisions based on the facts 

• not to say or do anything that implies judgement of the employee’s actions or 
behaviour. 

 
Investigatory Interviews 
 
When interviews are deemed appropriate by the Investigating Officer as part of 
an investigation the following guidance should be used. 
 
Interview Preparation 
 
Before an interview takes place the Investigating Officer should decide who, if 
anyone, will need to be interviewed and in what order, and this may involve 
asking the employee under investigation or other witnesses whether anyone 
important to establishing the facts should be interviewed. The Investigating 
Officer should give 48 hours advance warning to the employee and witnesses in 
writing of the interviews being required. 
 
All of the relevant details should be considered carefully, including any relevant 
personal details such as previous performance and experience, length of service, 
and any current warnings and history. 
 
Careful thought should be given to further relevant documentation that may be 
required, and of any facts that will need to be confirmed in writing such as the 
evidence of witnesses. 
 
The Investigating Officer should prepare an outline of issues and questions that 
need to be explored in order to establish the facts – what, when, where and how. 
 
Other considerations might include: 

• How the situation has already been dealt with 

• Have there been any recent changes to the job or working environment? 

• Have there been any previous incidents which relate to this one? 

• Has the employee received appropriate induction, counselling or training? 

• Are there any mitigating circumstances, e.g. health/disability, domestic 
problems, or provocation? 

 

Page 35



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 24 of 26 August 2013   

The Interview 
 
The Investigating Officer should ensure they have all of the relevant facts and 
documentation available to them at the interview meeting. 
 
The Investigating Officer should ensure a formal but polite and open approach is 
used that will encourage individuals to talk freely in order to establish the facts. It 
is important that nothing is prejudged, and that individuals do not feel that blame 
is being apportioned. Interviews should focus on establishing what was directly 
observed, heard of done by the employee concerned. The Investigating Officer 
should try and distinguish between hearsay and speculation from facts. 
 
Hearsay Evidence which is defined as “evidence offered by a witness, based 
upon what someone else has told him/her” and not upon personal knowledge or 
observation should not generally be admitted. However, if admitted, it should be 
dealt with very cautiously and little weight should be given to it. 
 
Anonymous evidence should not normally be used either. Exceptions to this may 
be: 

• where the allegations are serious and can be verified through independent 
investigation, or 

• if a potential witness had a real fear, reasonably held, that they would suffer 
substantial detriment if they were to sign their statement. 
 

Interview Introductions 

• Welcome the interviewee 

• Outline the purpose of the interview and the investigation 

• Confirm the need for confidentiality 

• Introduce those present and explain their roles to the interviewee 
 

Interview Style 

• Focus on the evidence and facts relevant to the investigation. i.e. what, where, 
when and how. 

• Pace the interview so that it can be easily followed by the interviewee and the note 
taker 

• The interviewer should be impartial and non-judgemental 

• Do not speculate and predict outcomes 

• Interviews should not go on longer that an hour and a half without a break 

• The interview can be stopped at any time to allow a comfort break or request for a 
break 

• It may be helpful to follow a date order approach to the interview – this will allow the 
Investigating Officer to see the order of events. 

 

Recording The Interview 

The record of the interview should include: 

• Date, place and timing of the interview 

• Who attended in what capacity 

• An accurate account of what was said and by whom 

 

Page 36



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 25 of 26 August 2013   

 
Recording The Interview 
 
The Investigating Officer should decide how to record the interview. Interviews 
that are likely to be lengthy and complex and particularly when interviewing the 
employee under investigation, tape recording is often the easiest and most 
efficient method. However, some employees may feel uncomfortable being 
interviewed on tape and should not be pressurised into doing so against their will. 
The employee may request the interview to be recoded in this manner and this 
should be considered by the Investigating Officer.  
 
There may be instances where tape recording is not deemed appropriate, for 
example, where a simple statement of fact is required or a prewritten statement is 
used ad verbatim and can be submitted. Or the minute taker or Investigating 
Officer is able to work on a lap top and type notes during an interview. 
 
The key is to choose the most efficient and effective way to record information in 
the circumstances having regard to the interviewee and the nature of the 
interview.  
 

Page 37



Disciplinary Policy and Procedures  Page 26 of 26 August 2013   

Appendix 2 - Disciplinary Appeal Application Form 
 

Your Name 

Your Job Title 

Your Service Area and Line Manager 

 
Details of your appeal (Please continue on separate sheet if required).  
 

Please explain the reasons for the appeal (refer to the policy), and attach any supporting 
evidence.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Individuals involved in the appeal: 

Please provide the names and contact details of any people involved in your appeal, 
including witnesses you wish to call during the appeal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Outcome requested from the appeal: 

Please set out what outcome you would like to see from your appeal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of trade union/other representative (if 
appropriate) 

 

Signature 

Date 

 
Please send this form to the Head of Transformation within five working days of 
receiving your disciplinary hearing outcome letter.  

Page 38



 

   

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 
 
Employment Statistics Quarter 1 – 2013/2014 

 
11 September 2013   

 
Report of Head of Transformation 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to detail employment statistics, by Directorate, for 
information and monitoring purposes and to compare the Cherwell District 
Council position against the wider employment market. 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 
 
(1) Note the contents of this report 

 
Executive Summary 

 
 Introduction 
 
1.1  Labour turnover 

According to the 2012 XpertHR staff turnover rates and costs survey, labour turnover 
rates in the public sector stood at an average of 13% of employees at each 
organisation, compared with 18% of workers in the private sector. Voluntary leavers 
accounted for 11% of all leavers in the private sector and 6.7% of all leavers in the 
public sector.  The staff turnover rate for Cherwell District Council for year ending 
31st March 2013 was 6% of workers; of this figure 4.1% were voluntary leavers. 
During quarter 1 of 2013/2014 the staff turnover rate was 2.39% of workers, with 
0.87% leaving on a voluntary basis (these figures include internal transfers). 

 1.2  Employment Statistics July 2011 to June 2013 

Table 1 illustrates the quarterly changes that took place in respect of individual 
employment across the whole organisation during the period July 2011 to June 
2013.   

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



 

   

Table 1 

Corporate 

 
2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-

2014 

 

Q2 

July 
to 

Sept 
2011 

Q3 

Oct to 
Dec 
2011 

Q4 

Jan to 
March 
2012 

Q1 

April 
to 

June 
2012 

Q2 

July 
to 

Sept 
2012 

Q3 

Oct to 
Dec 
2012 

Q4 

Jan to 
March 
2013 

Q1 

April 
to 

June 

2013 

Permanent/Fixed 
Term Employees 

(more than         
1 year FTC) 

        

New starters (A) 2 6 4 2 1 2 3 6 

Internal 
transfers (B) 

4 11 17 1 12 9 12 11 

All leavers (C) 9 19 11 3 5 7 13 6 

Voluntary 

leavers * (D) 
6 8 8 2 2 5 10 4 

 

Temporary 
Employees (less 
than 1 year FTC) 

        

Temporary 
starters (E) 

5 8 3 5 2 4 8 0 

Temporary 
leavers (F) 

6 4 4 2 7 7 4 3 

 

Casual     
Workers ** 

        

Casual starters (G) 16 2 3 5 12 5 2 3 

Casual leavers (H) 14 9 7 6 6 9 8 3 

 

Total starters 

(A + E + G) 
23 16 10 12 15 11 13 9 

Total leavers 

(C + F + H) 
29 32 22 11 18 23 25 12 

 

Page 40



 

   

 

* excludes age retirements, early retirements and redundancies, ill-health dismissals 
and retirements, other dismissals and TUPE transfers. 
 
** The phrase 'casual worker' is used to describe workers who are not part of the 
permanent workforce, but who supply services on an irregular or flexible basis, often 
to meet a fluctuating demand for work. 
 
The corporate turnover rates for permanent and fixed term staff for quarter 1 and the 
previous two years are illustrated in the graph at Appendix 1.  The reasons for leaving 
are also shown on this graph.  The graph in Appendix 2 shows the number of leavers 
broken down by Directorate.  Exit interviews were completed by 1 voluntary leaver 
during quarter 1.  This voluntary leaver left for career progression. 
 
The tables attached at Appendix 3 contain details of numbers of permanent and fixed 
term employees at Cherwell District Council as at 30th June 2013 by Directorate and 
Service area.  

There were 18 fixed term posts on the establishment at 30th June 2013.  Appendix 4 
provides details of the 44 vacant posts as at 30th June 2013. 

 
Implications 

 

Financial: All financial effects of changes have been contained 
within existing approved budgets. 

 Comments checked by Sarah Best, Service 
Accountant 01295 221736  

Risk Management: There are no risks associated with the contents of 
this report.   

 
Wards Affected – not applicable 

 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 
Appendix 3 
Appendix 4 
 

Corporate quarterly staff turnover  
Quarterly leavers by Directorate 
Establishment at end of Quarter 1 (30/06/13) 
List of vacancies at 30/06/13 
 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Jo Pitman, Head of Transformation 

Contact 
Information 

0300 0030108 

jo.pitman@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Corporate Quarterly Staff Turnover

9

19

11

3

5

7

13

66

8 8

2 2

5

10

4

3

11

3

1

3

2

3

2

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

Q2 2011/2012 Q3 2011/2012 Q4 2011/2012 Q1 2012/2013 Q2 2012/2013 Q3 2012/2013 Q4 2012/2013 Q1 2013/2014

Quarter 

%
T

u
rn

o
v
e
r

All Permanent/Fixed Term Leavers Voluntary Leavers Other Leavers (retirements, dismissals, redundancies & TUPE transfers)
Qtr 4 2012-2013 - 1 redundancy, 1 retirement & 1 end of contract
Qtr 1 2013-2014 - 1 retirement & 1 redundancy

P
a
g
e
 4

3



Appendix 2

Quarterly Leavers by Directorate

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Resources

Q4 January to

March 2013

Community &

Environment

Development Resources

Q1 April to June

2013

Community &

Environment

Development

Directorate and Period

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

L
e
a
v
e
rs

Other Leavers (Q4 1 redundancy, 1 retirement and 1 end of contract Q1 1 retirement and 1 redundancy  )

Voluntary Leavers

P
a

g
e
 4

4



Appendix 3

Unallocated hours 

of filled posts*

Directorate Service Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE FTE Posts FTE

Chief Executive's Office 4 3.50 2 1.40 2 2.00 0.10 3 1.90

Totals 4 3.50 2 1.40 2 2.00 0.10 3 1.90

Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE FTE Posts FTE

Finance & Procurement 40 32.36 39 29.64 1 1.00 1.72 39 30.44

Law & Governance 22 19.55 21 18.37 1 1.00 0.18 20 17.37

Transformation 54 49.66 47 43.37 7 7.00 -0.72 46 43.06

Totals 116 101.56 107 91.38 9 9.00 1.18 105 90.88

Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE FTE Posts FTE

C&E Directorate Support Unit 12 10.40 11 8.94 1 0.50 0.96 12 9.31

Community Services 95 79.73 83 68.24 12 10.15 1.34 84 69.25

Environmental Services 124 120.04 121 117.04 3 3.00 0.00 121 118.50

Totals 231 210.17 215 194.22 16 13.65 2.30 217 197.06

Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE FTE Posts FTE

Development Directorate Support Unit 24 22.66 23 20.80 1 1.00 0.86 21 18.80

Public Protection & Dev Management 51 49.30 48 44.18 3 3.00 2.12 50 46.38

Strategic Planning & the Economy 18 17.08 14 13.08 4 3.54 0.46 14 13.03

Regeneration & Housing 59 51.57 50 44.77 9 7.02 -0.22 50 44.78

Totals 152 140.61 135 122.83 17 14.56 3.22 135 122.98

Vacant

Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts FTE Posts Posts FTE

Chief Executive's Office 4 3.50 2 1.40 2 2.00 0.10 3 1.90

Resources 116 101.56 107 91.38 9 9.00 1.18 105 90.88

Community & Environment 231 210.17 215 194.22 16 13.65 2.30 217 197.06

Development 152 140.61 135 122.83 17 14.56 3.22 135 122.98

Totals 503 455.84 459 409.83 44 39.21 6.80 460 412.82

503 449.04

Community & 

Environment

ServiceDirectorate

HeadcountEstablished Filled   

Chief Executive's 

Office

Directorate Service

Vacant

* Unallocated hours of filled posts are where established hours are greater than those worked by the employee, e.g. in the Chief Executive's Office there are 

no vacant posts, however, post CXPA07 has 3.7 vacant hours (0.10 FTE) (established post is 18.5 hours but employee only works 14.8 hours).

ESTABLISHMENT 30/06/2013

Filled   

Staff in post at

31/03/2013

Filled   

Filled   

Established Vacant PostsHeadcount

Established

Resources

Directorate Service

VacantHeadcount

Established Headcount Vacant

Development

Directorate

Vacant

TOTAL

Established Headcount

P
a
g
e
 4

5



Appendix 4

Directorate Department

Post

No. Post Title Grade

Hrs 

PW FTE Contract

Post 

End FTE Post

Chief Executive's Office Executive Support Team CXEA01 EA to Director of Resources GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee started 02/07/2013 on SNC contract

Chief Executive's Office Executive Support Team CXEA02 EA to Director of Com & Env GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 currently recruiting at SNC

Community & Environment Community & Env DSU SD0200 Directorate Support Officer GRD008 18.50 0.50 P 0.50 1 post being covered by existing staff pending review

Community & Environment Community Services CI0056 Customer Service Advisor GRD004 20.00 0.54 P 0.54 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services CI0057 Customer Service Advisor GRD004 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services CI0067 Customer Service Advisor GRD004 32.50 0.88 P 0.88 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services CI0091 Postal & Reprographics Asst GRD004 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 post used to fund apprentices

Community & Environment Community Services RH0008 Health Strategy & Imp Officer GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services RH0009 GO Active Co-ordinator GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services RH0012 Arts Officer (South) GRD006 16.00 0.43 P 0.43 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services RH0042 Recreation Facilities Officer GRD004 12.00 0.32 P 0.32 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services RH0043 Recreation & Sport Dev Officer GRD005 36.00 0.97 P 0.97 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services UR0030 Licensing & Vehicle Parks Mgr GRD010 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending review

Community & Environment Community Services UR0067 Street Warden GRD006 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 service under review

Community & Environment Community Services UR0068 Street Warden Supervisor GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 service under review

Community & Environment Environmental Services ESR227 Waste Collection Loader GRD004 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 currently recruiting 

Community & Environment Environmental Services ESR242 Waste Services Driver GRD004 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 currently recruiting 

Community & Environment Environmental Services ESR270 Waste Collection Loader GRD004 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 currently recruiting 

Development Development DSU SD0143 Trainee Admin Officer GRD002 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee started 29/07/2013

Development Public Protect & Dev Mgt BC0006 Building Control Surveyor GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure

Development Public Protect & Dev Mgt DC0039 Planning Officer GRD006 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 currently recruiting 

Development Public Protect & Dev Mgt UR0052 Assistant Licensing Officer GRD003 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee on secondment - substantive post remains vacant

Development Regeneration and HousingEC0010 Corporate Facilities Manager GRD011 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 covered by agency staff

Development Regeneration and HousingEC0017 Facilities Operative GRD005 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure - covered by agency staff

Development Regeneration and HousingEC0022 Catering Assistant GRD003 20.00 0.54 P 0.54 1 employee starts 13/08/13

Development Regeneration and HousingEC0031 Cleaner - Bodicote House GRD001 12.50 0.34 P 0.34 1 covered by existing staff working extra hours

Development Regeneration and HousingEN0028 Cleaner - Car Park Office GRD001 5.00 0.14 P 0.14 1 covered by agency staff

Development Regeneration and HousingHS0020 Strategic Housing Manager GRD010 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee on secondment - substantive post remains vacant

Development Regeneration and HousingHS0021 Strategic Housing Officer GRD008 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee on secondment - substantive post remains vacant

Development Regeneration and HousingHS0052 Housing Technical Officer GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending service review

Development Regeneration and HousingHS0062 Development Officer - Build GRD008 37.00 1.00 F 14/10/15 1.00 1 employee started 01/07/2013

Development Strategic Planning & Ec PA0010 Policy Team Leader GRD010 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure

Development Strategic Planning & Ec PA0011 Community Engagement Officer GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure

Development Strategic Planning & Ec PA0016 Assistant Planning Officer GRD006 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure

Development Strategic Planning & Ec PA0041 Business Support Officer GRD004 20.00 0.54 P 0.54 1 vacant pending restructure

Resources Finance & Procurement FP0502 Senior Procurement Officer GRD008 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee started 30/07/2013

Resources Law & Governance LD0111 Legal Assistant GRD005 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure

Resources Transformation CXPA05 PA to Head of Service GRD005 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee on secondment - filled by fixed term contract at SNC

Resources Transformation HR0012 Learning & Development Manager GRD008 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure

Resources Transformation HR0013 Learning & Development Officer GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 vacant pending restructure

Resources Transformation SD0400 Business Admin Apprentice APP001 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee started 22/07/2013

Resources Transformation TF0215 Business Systems Analyst GRD007 37.00 1.00 P 1.00 1 employee started 12/08/2013

Resources Transformation TF0246 Service Transition Analyst GRD008 37.00 1.00 F 31/08/13 1.00 1 covered by agency staff until 31/08/2013

Resources Transformation TF0247 Service Transition Analyst GRD008 37.00 1.00 F 31/08/13 1.00 1 position on hold until 31/08/2013

39.21 44

Vacancies
Comments

Established Post Details

Vacancies at 30th June 2013

P
a

g
e
 4

6


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes , 23/07/2013 Personnel Committee

	6 Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy
	Appendix 1 Draft Joint Staff Disciplinary Policy and Procedure Aug 2013 V3 For Committee

	7 Employment Statistic - Quarter 1 2013/2014
	Appendices 1 - 4


